
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/81637494484








 

21 1122 DRAFT BZA Minutes  Page 3 of 12 

Mr. Marano stated correct, it stopped short and went to a parking area. Mr. Marano stated the 
pool was probably equidistant from the parking area and the house. Mr. Marano stated 
emergency services could go to the main house and just walk back. 
 
Mr. Mayer stated the zoning code did not have any access requirements but building inspectors  
would check if there were any requirements for access in the building code. 
 
Ms. Mollard stated that given the acreage it was quite a distance to get to the pool. 
 
Mr. Mayer stated he did not know if the residential code had requirements for distances, but he 
would check that to be sure it was within code. 
 
Mr. Gallagher asked if that could be made into a condition of approval. 
 
Mr. Mayer stated yes. 
 
Ms. Mollard asked what improvements would be made to the original gravel driveway. 
 
Mr. Christian stated it would be resurfaced and made to look better. 
 
Mr. Marano stated they planned to top coat it with another layer of gravel to spruce it up and 
noted it was really in good shape. 
 
Mr. Gallagher asked how the annual inspections of pool covers had been going. 
 
Mr. Mayer stated there was an initial inspection upon the approval of a variance and installation 
and after that homeowners were to annually certify their own pool covers and make sure they 
were serviced. Mr. Mayer stated that if there was a complaint or issue reported then staff could 
review service letters at that time. 
 
Mr. Gallagher stated they had previously discussed the need to have staff follow up with 
homeowners because complaints arrived too late after the fact.  
 
Mr. LaJeunesse stated  it sounded like there was not a process in place. 
 
Mr. Mayer stated there was no process in place now, but staff could work with the BZA 
regarding staff's following up with that. Mr. Mayer stated it was currently the homeowner's 
responsibility to ensure that was being met. 
 
Mr. Gallagher asked if a condition would be possible for that so homeowners would need to 
send in an annual certification letter and it would be a zoning violation if they did not. 
 
Mr. Mayer stated that if the BZA wanted to put that condition in staff could review the code 
and policies. Mr. Mayer stated they wanted to be sure it was done right. 
 
Ms. Mollard asked if neighbors, after being notified of this application, had expressed concerns 
about the gravel driveway. 
 
Mr. Christian stated no. 
 
Mr. LaJeunesse asked how a pool would be certified. 
 













 

21 1122 DRAFT BZA Minutes  Page 9 of 12 

further into the property to lead to a gravel parking lot that will serve the proposed accessory 
structure.  

2. The variance does not appear to be substantial. A large portion of the gravel driveway exists 
today and is used as a secondary driveway for the property that does not serve the primary 
structure. Additionally, the same request has been approved by the Architectural Review Board 
at 3915 Reynoldsburg New Albany Road (ARB-72-2015). In their approval, the ARB stated 
that the use of the material was appropriate as the property was along a rural roadway, it was an 
existing condition and it matched the rural/agrarian character of the area. The proposed 
variance appears to have the same circumstances. The property is located on a private road and 
the general character of the New Albany Farms subdivision is rural due to the large size of the 
lots, therefore, the use of gravel appears appropriate in this case.  

3. It does not appear the essential character of the neighborhood would be substantially altered or 
adjoining properties would suffer a ñsubstantial detrimentò if the variance is granted. The 
property is located in the New Albany Farms subdivision which is made up of private roads 
that are not accessible to the general public and this secondary driveway does not serve the 
primary home on the property. For these reasons, granting the variance is not precedent setting 
for future, similar cases.  

4. It appears that the variance will not adversely affect the delivery of government services, the 
health and safety of persons residing or working in the vicinity of the proposed development, 
be materially detrimental to the public welfare, or injurious to private property or public 
improvements in the vicinity.  

 
(D) Variance to C.O. 1173.02(e) to eliminate the pool fence requirement.  

The following should be considered in the Boardôs decision: 
 
Site Specific Considerations: 

¶ Codified Ordinance Section 1173.02(e) requires that any private swimming pool, or the 
property on which the pool is located, shall be enclosed by a wall or fence constructed so as to 
prevent uncontrolled access. Such wall or fence shall be of such design and construction as to 
effectively prevent a child from crawling or otherwise passing through or under such fence or 
barrier. Such wall or fence shall not be less than forty-eight (48) inches in height, maintained in 
good condition by the property owner, and affixed with an operable gate and lock. 

¶ The cityôs pool and fence code does not prescribe any particular style or type of fence other 
than saying such design and construction is to effectively prevent a child from crawling or 
otherwise passing through or under such fence or barrier.  

¶ The pool is located near the center of the property, adjacent to the proposed accessory structure.  
¶ There is an existing 4 rail horse fence along the parcel frontage of Balfour Green, Kitzmiller 

Road and Morse Road. The height and design of horse fence is not designed to prevent 
uncontrolled access. There is substantial landscaping throughout the entire site and a large pond 
in the eastern portion of the site.  

¶ This parcel is one of the largest in the entire city at 14.32+/- acres resulting in the pool being 
located greater distances from other residential properties and public roads. The pool is 
approximately 355 feet from Kitzmiller Road, 399 feet from Balfour Green, 490 feet from 
Morse Road and 330 feet from the western property line. Additionally, the property is located 
in the New Albany Farms subdivision which is a gated community that the general public does 
not have access to. All of these factors contribute to limiting the ability to gain access to the 
pool.  

¶ The applicant proposes to use an ASTM certified automatic pool safety cover. This is a similar 
pool cover the BZA approved for the same variance request at 6, 10 and 14 New Albany Farms. 
Pool covers are recognized by some building codes as an appropriate method to secure a pool. 
However, the city has not adopted a code that allows the use of covers. The cityôs private 













BZA 21 1220 BRS-3 Cupertino Mounding Variances V-124-2021  3 of 4 

elevation of the road once constructed. The applicant states that they intend to use this 
grade change in lieu of mounding and install trees within the setback area to provide 
screening for residentially zoned properties along this frontage.  

4. Additionally, there is a stream, with a corresponding 100-year flood plain, in the 
northeastern area of the site. The applicant seeks a variance to providing the screening 
requirements in this area due to this site constraint and will utilize this area to provide a 
greater setback from adjacent residential uses in addition to new and existing trees to 
provide screening.  

5. The city landscape architect has reviewed the proposed landscape plan for the project 
provided comments, see Exhibit B. Staff recommends a condition of approval that the 
city landscape architect comments be met. The city landscape architect recommends that 
additional plantings be added along both the Worthington Road frontage and the eastern 
boundary of the site in order to achieve 75% opacity and reach a total planting height of 
10 feet within five years of planting. These plantings will be installed in addition to street 
trees.  

6. It appears that there are special conditions and circumstances peculiar to the land that 
justify the variance request. There is a significant grade change from the centerline 
elevation of Worthington Road to the finished elevation of the parking lot and building 
pad. The parking and building sit 6-8 feet lower than the road. putting a constraint on the 
buildable area of the site and thereby limits the applicant’s ability to install 6-foot-tall 
mounding in this area. There is also a stream, with a corresponding 100-year flood plain, 
that runs along the northeastern property area of the site which also limits the buildable 
area of the site and where the applicant is able to install a 6-foot-tall mound. These 
special conditions and circumstances do not appear to be a result of any action of the 
applicant.  

7. It appears that the spirit and intent of the zoning text requirement will still be met if the 
variance is granted which is to provide visual separation between this commercially 
zoned property and adjacent residential properties. Factors contributing to providing 
visual separation/screening from adjacent residentially zoned properties are:  

o The 75% opacity screening will be provided along all boundaries where 
residences are located both of these site boundaries.  

o The parking lot and building pad is 6-8feet below Worthington Road and the 
building across the street which provides a similar level of visual screening along 
this frontage as would a new mound.  

o The applicant is preserving the stream corridor area and existing trees along the 
eastern side of the site. Additional landscaping is proposed to be added to ensure 
there is 75% opacity screening throughout the entire parcel boundary.  

o There are large setbacks (330-390 feet) from adjacent residential uses to the east.  
8. Granting the variance will not adversely affect the health and safety of persons residing 

or working in the vicinity of the proposed development, be materially detrimental to the 
public welfare, or injurious to private property or public improvements in the vicinity. 

 
IV. RECOMMENDATION 
Staff recommends approval of the variance application should the Board of Zoning Appeals finds 
that the application has sufficient basis for approval. The intent of the screening requirements 
found in the zoning text is to provide visual separation/screening between commercial and 
residential properties. The significant change in grade along the Worthington Road frontage and 
the stream corridor and corresponding floodway along the eastern portion of the site limit the 
applicant’s ability to provide screening as originally contemplated in the zoning text. With these 
unique site constraints in mind and the city landscape architect conditions of approval, the 
applicant is able to provide an alternative screening plan that meets the spirit and intent of the 
zoning requirements.  
 
V. ACTION 

Should the Board of Zoning Appeals find that the application has sufficient basis for approval, the 
following motion would be appropriate (conditions may be added):  



BZA 21 1220 BRS-3 Cupertino Mounding Variances V-124-2021  4 of 4 

 
Move to approve application VAR-124-2021 with the following condition of approval 

(conditions of approval may be added). 

1. The city landscape architect comments must be addressed.  
 

Approximate Site Location:  

 
Source: Google Earth 





Development Review
project name
prepared for
date
date received

.w{ /ǳǇŜǊǝƴƻ {ƛǘŜ  
City of New Albany
December 9, 2021
December 7, 2021 

tƭŀƴǝƴƎ tƭŀƴ /ƻƳƳŜƴǘǎ 
1. {ǘǊŜŜǘ ǘǊŜŜǎ ŀƭƻƴƎ ²ƻǊǘƘƛƴƎǘƻƴ wŘΦ ǎƘƻǳƭŘ ōŜ ǇƭŀƴǘŜŘ ƛƴ ǊŀƴŘƻƳ ƳŀǎǎƛƴƎǎ ƻŦ ŘŜŎƛŘǳƻǳǎ ǎƘŀŘŜ ǘǊŜŜǎ ǘƻ ǊŜƅŜŎǘ ǘƘŜ
ǊǳǊŀƭ ŎƘŀǊŀŎǘŜǊ ƻŦ ŜȄƛǎǝƴƎ ǊƻŀŘΦ LƴŎƭǳŘŜ ŀ ƳƛƴƛƳǳƳ ƻŦ о ŘƛũŜǊŜƴǘ ǎǇŜŎƛŜǎΦ {ŜŜ ŘƛŀƎǊŀƳΦ

2. The proposed trees on the southern edge of the leisure trail should include some evergreens to assist with screening
from the residents on the north side of Worthington Road. Please replace 25% of the proposed trees with evergreen
tree species. See diagram.

оΦ ¢ƘƻǳƎƘ ǘƘŜ ŜȄƛǎǝƴƎ ǘǊŜŜǎ Ǉƭŀȅ ŀƴ ƛƳǇƻǊǘŀƴǘ ǊƻƭŜ ŦƻǊ ǎŎǊŜŜƴƛƴƎ ŦǊƻƳ ŀŘƧŀŎŜƴǘ ǇǊƻǇŜǊǝŜǎΣ ƛǘ ƛǎ ƴƻǘ ŜƴƻǳƎƘ ǘƻ ƳŜŜǘ ǘƘŜ
ǊŜǉǳƛǊŜŘ тр҈ ƻǇŀŎƛǘȅ ǿƛǘƘƛƴ р ȅŜŀǊǎΦ ¢ƘŜǊŜ ŀǊŜ ǎƛƎƴƛŬŎŀƴǘ ƘƻƭŜǎ ǿƛǘƘƛƴ ǘƘŜ ŜȄƛǎǝƴƎ ǘǊŜŜ ǎǘŀƴŘǎΣ ƭŜŀǾƛƴƎ ǘƘŜ ƛƴǘŜǊƛƻǊ ƻŦ
ǘƘŜ ǎƛǘŜ ŜȄǇƻǎŜŘ ǘƻ ǘƘŜ ǊƛƎƘǘπƻŦπǿŀȅ ǇŀǘǊƻƴǎΦ tƭŀƴǘ ŀŘŘƛǝƻƴŀƭ ŘŜŎƛŘǳƻǳǎ ŀƴŘ ŜǾŜǊƎǊŜŜƴ ǘǊŜŜǎ ƛƴ ǎǇŜŎƛŬŎ ƭƻŎŀǝƻƴǎ ǘƻ
Ŭƭƭ ǘƘŜ ƎŀǇǎ ǘƻ ŜƴǎǳǊŜ ǎŎǊŜŜƴƛƴƎ ǿƛƭƭ ǊŜŀŎƘ тр҈ ƻǇŀŎƛǘȅ ǿƛǘƘƛƴ р ȅŜŀǊǎΦ {ŜŜ ŘƛŀƎǊŀƳΦ

{ƛǘŜ tƭŀƴ /ƻƳƳŜƴǘǎ 
4. The city is concerned the future road extension from the southern parking lot and truck parking. The turn radii and
ǘƘŜ ǇŀǾŜƳŜƴǘ ǿƛŘǘƘ ǎŜŜƳ ǘƻƻ ǿƛŘŜΦ {ǳōƳƛǘ Ǉƭŀƴǎ ŦƻǊ Ŭƴŀƭ ŦǳǘǳǊŜ ǊƻŀŘ ŀƭƛƎƴƳŜƴǘ ŦƻǊ ŀǇǇǊƻǾŀƭΦ {ŜŜ ŘƛŀƎǊŀƳΦ

*NOTES:
¢ƘŜ ǇǊƻǾƛŘŜŘ ŘƛŀƎǊŀƳ ƛǎ ŦƻǊ ŎƭŀǊƛŬŎŀǝƻƴ ŀƴŘ ŘŜǎƛƎƴ ƛƴǘŜƴǘ ǇǳǊǇƻǎŜǎ ƻƴƭȅΦ  ¢ƘŜ ŘƛŀƎǊŀƳ ǎƘƻǳƭŘ ōŜ ǳǎŜŘ ǘƻ ƘŜƭǇ 
ƛƭƭǳǎǘǊŀǘŜ ǘƘŜ ŀōƻǾŜ ŎƻƳƳŜƴǘǎΦ  Lǘ ƛǎ ǘƘŜ ǊŜǎǇƻƴǎƛōƛƭƛǘȅ ƻŦ ǘƘŜ ŘŜǎƛƎƴ Ŏƻƴǎǳƭǘŀƴǘǎ ǘƻ ƛƴŎƻǊǇƻǊŀǘŜ ǘƘŜ ŀōƻǾŜ ŎƻƳƳŜƴǘǎ 
as it relates to the site and to adhere to all City requirements and subsequent code.  The diagram may not be to 
scale.

EXHIBIT B







BRS-3 Variance Request         November 19, 2021 

 

 
The Harrison South Zoning District text section F(8) states that a minimum 6 foot high mound must be installed in 
addition to a landscape buffer on it that provides 75% opacity screening and a total height of 10 feet above ground level 
must be provided along residential property lines that abut this site. The text further states that if two properties have an 
intervening public street right-of-way between them, they shall be considered abutting. There are residential properties 
along the eastern perimeter boundary of the site and across Worthington Road where these requirements apply. 
 
The applicant is requesting a variance to utilize existing preserved trees, grade change and a greater setback distance to 
buffer the adjacent residential properties from the proposed project.  
 
North Property Line - Worthington Road Frontage 
Due to the existing and proposed grade of the site, a 6’ mound along Worthington Road is not feasible. The proposed 
parking lot and building finished floor elevation sit approximately 6 to 8 feet below the centerline elevation of 
Worthington Road. The applicant proposes to utilize this grade differential, in lieu of mounding, combined with the 
proposed 4-rail horse fence and frontage tree plantings as the residential buffer. 
 
East Property Line 
There is an existing stream corridor with significant existing trees in the northeast corner of the site. To preserve this 
stream corridor, the applicant has designed the site with approximately 330 feet to 390 feet of buffer between the 
pavement and the east property line. The applicant proposes to utilize the increased distance from to the eastern 
boundary and 70 existing trees as the residential buffer for the northern portion of the east property line. The existing 
trees used for screening are alive at the time of this application and are rated fair to good quality. For the southern 
portion of the property line, the applicant proposes to utilize the increased distance from to the eastern boundary, along 
with proposed evergreen and deciduous trees as the residential buffer for the southern portion of the east property 
line. 
 
  
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 























BZA 21 1220 7365 Milton Court Buffer Zone Variance VAR-126-2021  3 of 4 

5. It does not appear that the spirit and intent of the requirement will be met if the variance 
is approved. The intent of the buffer is to allow that area to remain in its natural state and 
be undisturbed. While not required by city code, this buffer zone provides screening for 
adjacent properties in the vicinity and preserves existing natural features of the site. 
While the applicant is encroaching into this buffer zone, they are remediating landscape 
that they previously removed to reestablish the screening for adjacent property owners.  

6. Approving the variance request is substantial and may be precedent setting for future, 
similar variance applications. While the fence and playground are minimally invasive 
improvements, locating them in this buffer zone will alter the natural state of the area.  

7. It does appear that the issue can be solved in another manner other than granting the 
variance request. The fence could be relocated to be directly adjacent to the proposed 
pool on the site. However, the property owners desire to fence in the easement area to 
create a space for their young children to play. Additionally, it appears that there is 
sufficient space on the site for the playground to be located outside of the buffer area in 
the backyard. For these reasons, it appears that there can also be a beneficial use of the 
property without the variance.  

8. Granting the variance will not adversely affect the health and safety of persons residing 
or working in the vicinity of the proposed development, be materially detrimental to the 
public welfare, or injurious to private property or public improvements in the vicinity. 

9. Granting the variance will not adversely affect the delivery of government services.  
 
IV. RECOMMENDATION 
Staff is not supportive of the variance request. There are conditions and circumstances that are 
unique to this property which reduce the amount of space in the rear yard to place improvements 
such as the playground and fence. However, the intent of this buffer zone area is for it be remain 
undisturbed in order preserve existing natural features that provide screening for adjacent 
properties. While the applicant only proposes to install a fence and a playground in this area, it 
appears that the request can be solved in another manner as there is sufficient room on the site to 
relocate these improvements outside of the buffer area. Approving this variance may set a 
precedent for future, similar cases.  
 
If the variance request is approved, staff recommends a condition of approval that all other areas 
within the buffer zone be undisturbed and allowed to grow and reestablish the zone as it has 
existed historically.  
 
V. ACTION 

Should the Board of Zoning Appeals find that the application has sufficient basis for approval, the 
following motion would be appropriate (conditions may be added):  
 
Move to approve application VAR-126-2021 (conditions of approval may be added). 

1. All other areas within the buffer zone must remain undisturbed and allowed to grow 
overtime to reestablish the zone as it has existed historically.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 










	A9qdq13l_12nb2rw_21z8.tmp
	21 1220 BZA Agenda.pdf
	21 1122 DRAFT BZA Minutes.pdf
	BZA 21 1220 BRS Cupertino Mounding Variance.pdf
	21 1122 Cupertino Variance Submittal.pdf
	Signed Application.pdf
	Narrative Statement.pdf
	1 General Notes.pdf
	2 Site Plan.pdf
	3 Utility Plan.pdf
	4 Grading Plan.pdf
	Worthington Road Frontage Exhibit.pdf
	5 Landscape Plan.pdf
	6 Landscape Details & Notes.pdf
	Existing Tree Exhibit.pdf

	BZA 21 1220 7365 Milton Court Buffer Zone Variance VAR-126-2021.pdf
	EXHIBIT A.pdf
	211213 Landscape Review_BRS Cupertino (003).pdf

	A9jdnm1z_12nb2sc_21z8.tmp
	SINGH - Variance Application 11-29-21.pdf
	SINGH - Plan - Variance 11-29-21.pdf
	SINGH - PLat 11-29-21.pdf




